MID PENN BANCORP INC Form DEF 14A November 20, 2008 Table of Contents

Filed by the Registrant x

### **UNITED STATES**

### SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

# **SCHEDULE 14A**

(Rule 14a-101)

### **Information Required in Proxy Statement**

**Schedule 14A Information** 

Proxy Statement Pursuant to Section 14(a) of the

**Securities Exchange Act of 1934** 

Filed by a Party other than the Registrant "

Check the appropriate box:

Preliminary Proxy Statement

Confidential, for Use of the Commission Only (as permitted by Rule 14a-6(e)(2))

Definitive Proxy Statement

Definitive Additional Materials

Soliciting Material Pursuant to §240.14a-12

Mid Penn Bancorp, Inc.

(Name of Registrant as Specified In Its Charter)

(	(Name	of I	Person(s	s)	Filing	Proxy	<b>Statement</b>	. if	other	than	the	Registrant	)

Payr	ment of Filing Fee (Check the appropriate box):
X	No fee required.
	Fee computed on table below per Exchange Act Rules 14a-6(i)(1) and 0-11.
	(1) Title of each class of securities to which transaction applies:
	(2) Aggregate number of securities to which transaction applies:
	(3) Per unit price or other underlying value of transaction computed pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 0-11 (set forth the amount on which the filing fee is calculated and state how it was determined):
	(4) Proposed maximum aggregate value of transaction:
	(5) Total fee paid:

Fee paid previously with preliminary materials.	
Check box if any part of the fee is offset as provided by Exchange Act Rule 0-11(a)(2) and ident was paid previously. Identify the previous filing by registration statement number, or the Form of	tify the filing for which the offsetting fe or Schedule and the date of its filing.
(1) Amount Previously Paid:	
(2) Form, Schedule or Registration Statement No.:	
(3) Filing Party:	
(4) Date Filed:	

Dear Shareholder:

A special meeting of shareholders of Mid Penn Bancorp, Inc. (Mid Penn) will be held at Mid Penn Bank, 349 Union Street, Millersburg, Pennsylvania 17061 on Wednesday, December 10, 2008, at 10:00 a.m. local time.

The attached Notice of Special Meeting of Shareholders and Proxy Statement describe the formal business to be transacted at the special meeting. We are asking shareholders to (1) approve and adopt an amendment to Mid Penn s Articles of Incorporation to authorize the issuance of up to 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock and (2) authorize the adjournment or postponement of the special meeting if more time is needed to solicit additional votes in favor of the amendment proposal.

We are asking shareholders to approve and adopt an amendment to Mid Penn s Articles of Incorporation in order to permit Mid Penn to authorize the issuance of preferred stock so that Mid Penn may become eligible to participate in the U.S. Department of Treasury s Capital Purchase Program. This program is designed to provide certain U.S. financial institutions with low-cost access to Tier I capital thereby encouraging them to provide credit to households and to support economic growth by bolstering public confidence in the U.S. financial system. We believe that taking action to make Mid Penn eligible to participate in the program, which would provide low cost Tier I funding, is in the best interests of our shareholders. Directors and officers of Mid Penn will be present at the special meeting to respond to any questions you might have.

Your vote is important regardless of the number of shares you own or whether you attend the special meeting; therefore, it is urgent that you vote your shares as soon as possible so that we comply with the U.S. Treasury s timeline with respect to the U.S. Treasury s Capital Purchase Program. If you attend the special meeting, you may withdraw your proxy and vote in person, even if you have previously voted.

Sincerely,

Edwin D. Schlegel

Chairman of the Board, Interim President, and CEO

### Mid Penn Bancorp, Inc.

**Notice of Special Meeting of Shareholders** 

And

### **Proxy Statement**

For the 2008 Special Meeting of Shareholders

To Be Held On December 10, 2008

Mid Penn Bancorp, Inc. is mailing this Notice and Proxy Statement to shareholders

on or about November 20, 2008.

### 349 Union Street

### Millersburg, Pennsylvania 17061

### NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

### TO BE HELD ON DECEMBER 10, 2008

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MID PENN BANCORP, INC.:

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a special meeting of the shareholders of Mid Penn Bancorp, Inc. (Mid Penn) will be held at Mid Penn Bank, 349 Union Street, Millersburg, Pennsylvania 17061, on Wednesday, December 10, 2008, at 10:00 a.m., local time, for the purpose of considering and voting upon proposals regarding the following matters:

- To approve and adopt an amendment to Mid Penn s Articles of Incorporation authorizing the issuance of up to 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock.
- 2. To adjourn or postpone the special meeting of shareholders, if more time is needed, to allow Mid Penn time to solicit additional votes in favor of the proposal to amend its Articles of Incorporation; and
- 3. To transact such other business as may properly come before the special meeting or any adjournment or postponement thereof. Only those shareholders of record, at the close of business on November 10, 2008, are entitled to notice of and to vote at the special meeting.

The board of directors recommends that the shareholders vote FOR the proposal to amend Mid Penn s Articles of Incorporation authorizing the issuance of preferred stock and FOR the proposal to adjourn or postpone the special meeting.

Please promptly sign the enclosed proxy and return it in the enclosed postage-paid envelope. Your proxy is revocable, and you may withdraw it at any time prior to voting at the special meeting. You may deliver a notice of revocation or deliver a later dated proxy to the Secretary of Mid Penn before the vote at the special meeting.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Edwin D. Schlegel Chairman of the Board, Interim President, and CEO

November 20, 2008

Your vote is important.

Please complete, sign, date, and return your proxy card.

### **Table of Contents**

<u>Introduction</u>	1
Information About the Mid Penn Special Meeting of Shareholders	1
Proposal No. 1: Amendment to Articles of Incorporation	4
Purpose and Background	4
Liquidity and Financial Impact of the Capital Purchase Program	5
Effect of Inability to Participate in the Capital Purchase Program	10
Description of the Preferred Stock Under the U.S. Treasury s Capital Purchase Program	11
Amendments of Certain Employment Agreements; Waiver from Certain Senior Executive Officers	13
Description of the Warrants Under the U.S. Treasury s Capital Purchase Program	13
Potential Anti-Takeover Effect	14
Proposed Amendment	14
Vote Required and Board of Director s Recommendation	16
Beneficial Share Ownership	17
Principal Shareholders	17
Share Ownership by the Directors and Officers	17
Proposal No. 2: Adjournment or Postponement of Special Meeting	18
Other Business	19
Shareholder Proposals for 2009 Annual Meeting	19
Incorporation of Financial Information	19
Accountants Attendance at the Annual Meeting	20
Forward-Looking Statements	20

#### Introduction

We are sending this proxy statement to you as a shareholder of Mid Penn Bancorp, Inc. (Mid Penn) in connection with the solicitation of proxies for the special meeting of shareholders to be held at Mid Penn Bank, 349 Union Street, Millersburg, Pennsylvania 17061, on Wednesday, December 10, 2008, at 10:00 a.m. local time. Mid Penn s board of directors is soliciting proxies for use at the special meeting and at any adjournments or postponements thereof. Only shareholders of record as of the close of business on November 10, 2008, which we refer to as the record date, will be entitled to vote at the special meeting. The proxy solicitation materials for the special meeting will be distributed to shareholders of record on or about November 20, 2008.

### Information About the Mid Penn Special Meeting of Shareholders

### Why is Mid Penn holding a special shareholders meeting?

The global and U.S. economies are experiencing significantly reduced business activity as a result of, among other factors, disruptions in the financial system this past year. In response to these economic conditions, Congress passed the Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 under which it allocated up to \$700 billion to protect the U.S. economy, to strengthen public confidence in financial institutions, and to foster the robust functioning of credit markets. Pursuant to the authority of the Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008, the federal government announced several initiatives under the Troubled Assets Relief Program to accomplish the goals of the Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008. One of these initiatives is the U.S. Treasury s Capital Purchase Program whereby the U.S. Department of Treasury will purchase preferred stock from U.S. financial institutions. Proceeds from the sale of the preferred stock will constitute Tier I capital for bank regulatory purposes. The goal of the U.S. Treasury s Capital Purchase Program is to encourage U.S. financial institutions to build capital in order to increase the flow of financing to U.S. businesses and consumers and to restore liquidity and stability to the U.S. financial system.

We believe that it is in the best interests of Mid Penn to participate in this program. However, Mid Penn s Articles of Incorporation do not authorize the issuance of preferred stock. Therefore, Mid Penn must amend its Articles of Incorporation to authorize preferred stock so that it may become eligible to participate in the U.S. Treasury s Capital Purchase Program.

### When is the special meeting?

Wednesday, December 10, 2008, at 10:00 a.m. local time.

### Where will the special meeting be held?

At Mid Penn Bank, 349 Union Street, Millersburg, Pennsylvania 17061.

### What matters will be voted on at the special meeting?

Shareholders will be considering and voting on proposals regarding the following matters:

- To approve and adopt an amendment to Mid Penn s Articles of Incorporation authorizing the issuance of up to 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock.
- 2. To adjourn or postpone the special meeting of shareholders, if more time is needed, to allow Mid Penn time to solicit additional votes in favor of the proposal to amend its Articles of Incorporation; and
- 3. To transact such other business as may properly come before the special meeting or any adjournment or postponement thereof.

1

#### Who can vote?

You are entitled to vote if Mid Penn s records show that you held shares of Mid Penn s common stock as of the close of business on November 10, 2008, the record date for the special meeting.

Each shareholder is entitled to one vote for each share of common stock held on November 10, 2008. On November 10, 2008, there were 3,479,780 shares of common stock issued and outstanding. Common stock is Mid Penn s only class of voting securities.

### How do I vote?

**Voting by Proxy.** The Mid Penn board of directors is soliciting proxies from the Mid Penn shareholders. This will give Mid Penn shareholders an opportunity to vote at the Mid Penn special meeting of shareholders. When you execute and deliver a valid proxy, a named proxy holder will vote the shares represented by your proxy in accordance with your instructions. To properly submit a validly executed proxy:

- Mark your selections;
- 2. Date and sign your name exactly as it appears on the proxy card; and
- 3. Mail to:

Registrar and Transfer Company

Attn: Proxy Department

P.O. Box 1160

Cranford, NJ 07016-9749

Unless your executed proxy instructs otherwise, the named proxy holder will vote your shares FOR the proposal to approve and adopt the amendment to the Articles of Incorporation to authorize the issuance of preferred stock, FOR the proposal to adjourn or postpone the special meeting, if more time is needed, to allow Mid Penn time to solicit additional votes in favor of the amendment proposal, and in accordance with the board of director s discretion on any other proposal considered at the special meeting.

**Voting in Person.** If you attend the special meeting, you may deliver your completed proxy card in person or may vote by completing a ballot which will be available at the meeting.

### How do I vote if my shares are held in street name?

If your shares are held in an account at a brokerage firm, a bank, or other nominee, then that party is considered the shareholder of record for voting purposes and should give you instructions for voting your shares. As the beneficial owner, you have the right to direct how shares held in your account are voted. Your broker, bank, or other nominee will not vote your shares unless you provide instructions to your broker, bank, or other nominee on how to vote. You should fill out the voter instruction form sent to you by your broker, bank, or other nominee with this document.

### How do I change or revoke my proxy?

You retain the right to revoke proxies at any time before they are exercised. Unless revoked, the shares represented by your proxy will be voted according to your instructions at the special meeting and all adjournments or postponements thereof. There are three ways for you to revoke your proxy and change your vote:

- 1. You may send a later-dated, signed proxy card to be received before Mid Penn s special meeting.
- 2. You may revoke your proxy by written notice delivered at any time prior to the vote on the proposals including delivery at the special meeting. Shareholders should deliver this notice to Cindy L. Wetzel, Corporate Secretary.
- 3. You may attend Mid Penn s special meeting and vote in person.

2

If you have instructed a broker to vote your shares, you must follow directions received from your broker to change your vote.

### May I still attend the special meeting if I vote in advance?

Yes. We strongly encourage you to vote by promptly returning an executed proxy card by mail so that your shares will be represented at the special meeting. However, voting your shares by proxy does not affect your right to attend the special meeting.

### What constitutes a quorum?

A quorum must exist to conduct business at the special meeting. Mid Penn will have a quorum and will be able to conduct the business of the special meeting if the holders of a majority of the votes that shareholders are entitled to cast are present at the special meeting, either in person or by proxy. There were 3,479,780 shares of Mid Penn s common stock issued and outstanding on November 10, 2008, the record date. A majority of the issued and outstanding shares, or 1,739,891 shares, present or represented by proxy, will constitute a quorum.

If you vote by proxy, your shares will be included for determining the presence of a quorum. Both abstentions and broker non-votes also are included for purposes of determining the presence of a quorum. Generally, broker non-votes occur when shares held by a broker for a beneficial owner are not voted with respect to a particular proposal because the broker has not received voting instructions from the beneficial owner and the broker lacks discretionary voting power to vote those shares.

### Assuming a quorum, what is the vote required to approve the proposals to be considered at the special meeting?

The affirmative vote of a majority of all votes cast, in person and by proxy, at the special meeting is required to approve both the proposal to approve and adopt the amendment to Mid Penn s Articles of Incorporation authorizing the issuance of preferred stock and the proposal to adjourn or postpone the special meeting, if more time is needed, to allow Mid Penn time to solicit additional votes in favor of the amendment proposal. Under Pennsylvania law, abstentions and broker non-votes are not considered votes cast and, accordingly, will not affect the outcome of any of the matters being voted on at the special meeting.

### Do shareholders have dissenters rights in regards to the proposals?

Under applicable Pennsylvania law, Mid Penn s shareholders are not entitled to dissenters—rights with respect to the proposal to approve and adopt the amendment to Mid Penn s Articles of Incorporation authorizing the issuance of preferred stock or the proposal to adjourn or postpone the special meeting, if more time is needed, to allow Mid Penn time to solicit additional votes in favor of the amendment proposal.

#### What is the recommendation of Mid Penn s board of directors?

Mid Penn s board of directors unanimously recommends that each shareholder vote FOR the proposal to approve and adopt the amendment to the Articles of Incorporation authorizing the issuance of preferred shares and FOR the proposal to adjourn or postpone the special meeting, if more time is needed, to allow Mid Penn time to solicit additional votes in favor of the amendment proposal.

### What will the consequences be if the amendment proposal is not approved and adopted?

If shareholders do not approve and adopt the proposal to amend Mid Penn s Articles of Incorporation authorizing the issuance of preferred stock, Mid Penn likely will be unable to participate in the U.S. Treasury s Capital Purchase Program.

### Who pays for the solicitation of proxies?

The accompanying proxy is being solicited by Mid Penn s board of directors. Mid Penn will bear the cost of soliciting the proxies. Officers and other management employees of Mid Penn will receive no additional compensation for the solicitation of proxies and may use mail, e-mail, personal interviews and/or telephone to solicit proxies.

#### Proposal No. 1: Amendment to Articles of Incorporation

Our Articles of Incorporation provide that we are authorized to issue up to 10,000,000 shares of common stock, par value \$1.00 per share. At November 10, 2008, we had 3,479,780 shares of common stock issued and outstanding.

Mid Penn s Articles of Incorporation do not presently authorize the issuance of securities other than common stock. On November 12, 2008, our board of directors unanimously approved a resolution to submit a proposal to shareholders to amend Mid Penn s Articles of Incorporation authorizing the issuance of up to 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock which confers on the board of directors discretion to designate one or more series of the preferred stock with the rights, privileges, and preferences of each series that the board of directors from time to time may fix. Furthermore, the board of directors unanimously approved a resolution recommending that Mid Penn s shareholders approve and adopt the proposal to amend the Articles of Incorporation accordingly.

### **Purpose and Background**

The board's primary objective in authorizing preferred stock is to provide Mid Penn with the ability to participate in the U.S. Treasury's Capital Purchase Program. The board of directors believes that it is in the best interests of Mid Penn and its shareholders to afford Mid Penn the opportunity to obtain additional capital through the Capital Purchase Program to be utilized in accordance with the program and specifically to strengthen its capital position and provide loans to its market area. Under this program, the U.S. Treasury will purchase preferred stock that will qualify as Tier I capital for bank regulatory purposes. We submitted our application to the U.S. Treasury's Capital Purchase Program on November 4, 2008, and received preliminary approval to participate in the program on November 19, 2008. We can give no assurances that we will be able to participate in the Capital Purchase Program, nor can we give assurances regarding the amount of shares of preferred stock we may issue under the Capital Purchase Program or the approximate amount of capital infusion we may receive from the U.S. Treasury for any shares of preferred stock that we issue under the Capital Purchase Program.

We have approximately 30 days from the date of this proxy statement to amend our Articles of Incorporation authorizing the issuance of preferred stock. If the Articles of Incorporation are amended to authorize the issuance of preferred stock, the board of directors would have discretion to establish different series of preferred stock and the rights, privileges, and preferences affixed to each series without further shareholder approval. Therefore, shareholders would have no input or right to approve the terms of any series of preferred stock, including the issuance of preferred stock to the U.S. Treasury if we participate in the U.S. Treasury s Capital Purchase Program.

Mid Penn has no present agreement or intention to issue any other series of preferred stock other than the preferred stock contemplated under the U.S. Treasury s Capital Purchase Program.

4

### Liquidity and Financial Impact of the Capital Purchase Program

#### Overview

Mid Penn has always placed great emphasis on maintaining a strong capital base and continues to exceed regulatory capital requirements for well capitalized financial institutions. Management is committed to maintaining a capital level sufficient to assure shareholders, customers, and regulators that Mid Penn is financially sound, and to enable Mid Penn to provide a desirable level of profitability. Accordingly, the board of directors believes that Mid Penn should take all necessary steps to exceed regulatory capital levels that will position Mid Penn to remain strong through this crisis, including participating in the U.S. Treasury s Capital Purchase Program.

Mid Penn s capital ratios remain strong and we believe that we have sufficient liquidity to meet our anticipated funding needs. However, to the extent that shareholders do not approve the proposed amendments to our Articles of Incorporation described in this proxy statement, Mid Penn could be precluded from participating in the Capital Purchase Program, which is one of the most cost effective methods for any financial institution to further strengthen its capital base.

In managing our consolidated balance sheet, we depend on access to a variety of sources of funding to provide us with sufficient capital resources and liquidity to meet our commitments and business needs, and to accommodate the transaction and cash management needs of our customers. Sources of funding available to us, and upon which we rely as regular components of our liquidity and funding management strategy, include inter-bank borrowings and brokered deposits. We have also historically been able to raise funds from either short or long-term borrowings or equity issuances. Recently, the volatility and disruption in the capital and credit markets has reached unprecedented levels. In some cases, the markets have produced downward pressure on stock prices and credit availability for certain issuers without regard to those issuers—underlying financial strength. If current levels of market disruption and volatility continue or worsen, our ability to access certain of our sources of funding on satisfactory terms may be disrupted, which may adversely affect our capital costs and, in turn, our liquidity. To the extent that our shareholders do not approve the proposed amendments to our Articles of Incorporation described in this proxy statement, Mid Penn could be precluded from participating in the Capital Purchase Program, which is one of the most cost effective methods for any financial institution to further strengthen its capital base.

In the short-term, we will use the proceeds from the Capital Purchase Program to pay down or reduce short-term borrowings that are expected to have yields between 1.0% and 0.5%. Over the long-term, however, we hope that short-term losses will be offset by the gains from the extension of loans in the future; we cannot be certain of this result since the market for future loans and the rates for those loans are uncertain.

### **Pro Forma Financial Information**

The unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial data set forth below has been derived by the application of pro forma adjustments to our historical financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2007 and the nine months ended September 30, 2008. The unaudited pro forma consolidated financial data gives effect to the events discussed below as if they had occurred on January 1, 2007 in the case of the statement of income data and September 30, 2008 in the case of the balance sheet data.

The issuance of a minimum of \$4.5 million and a maximum of \$10 million of preferred stock to U.S. Treasury under the Capital Purchase Program.

The issuance of warrants to purchase a minimum of 32,640 shares and a maximum of 72,533 shares of Mid Penn common stock assuming a purchase price of \$20.68 per share (trailing 20-day Mid Penn average share price as of November 17, 2008).

The reduction in short-term borrowings from the proceeds of the Capital Purchase Program.

5

We present unaudited pro forma consolidated balance sheet data, including selected line items from our balance sheet and selected capital ratios, as of September 30, 2008. We also present unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated income statements for the year ended December 31, 2007 and the nine months ended September 30, 2008. The pro forma financial data may change materially based on the timing and utilization of the proceeds as well as certain other factors including the strike price of the warrants, any subsequent changes in Mid Penn s common stock price, and the discount rate used to determine the fair value of the preferred stock.

The information should be read in conjunction with our audited financial statements and the related notes as filed as part of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007, and our unaudited consolidated financial statements and the related notes filed as part of our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2008.

The following unaudited pro forma consolidated financial data is not necessarily indicative of our financial position or results of operations that actually would have been attained had proceeds from the Capital Purchase Program been received, or the issuance of the warrants pursuant to the Capital Purchase Program been made, at the dates indicated, and is not necessarily indicative of our financial position or results of operations that will be achieved in the future. In addition, as noted above, our participation in the Capital Purchase Program is subject to our shareholders approving the proposed amendments to our Articles of Incorporation described in this proxy statement.

We have included the following unaudited pro forma consolidated financial data solely for the purpose of providing shareholders with information that may be useful for purposes of considering and evaluating the proposals to amend our Articles of Incorporation. Our future results are subject to prevailing economic and industry specific conditions and financial, business and other known and unknown risks and uncertainties, certain of which are beyond our control. These factors include, without limitation, those described in this proxy statement and those described under Item 1A of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007, in Item 1A of our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2008 and in our other reports filed with the SEC, which are specifically incorporated by reference in this proxy statement.

### **Mid Penn Bancorp**

### Pro Forma Consolidated Balance Sheet Data and Capital Ratios

### (In Thousands)

	Historical	As A	tember 30, 2008 Adjusted(2) (unaudited)	As A	Adjusted(3)
Balance Sheet:					
Total liabilities(1)	\$ 511,716	\$	507,216	\$	501,716
Total shareholders equity	\$ 40,696	\$	45,250	\$	50,817
Total shareholders equity available to common shareholders	\$ 40,696	\$	45,115	\$	50,517
Capital Ratios:					
Total risk-based capital to risk-weighted assets ratio	10.33%		11.38%		12.65%
Tier 1 capital ratio	9.15%		10.20%		11.48%
Leverage ratio	7.30%		8.14%		9.16%
Equity to assets ratio	7.37%		8.18%		9.18%

- (1) Assumes that proceeds are initially used to reduce short-term borrowings.
- $(2) \quad \text{Assumes the issuance of a minimum of $4.5$ million of preferred stock.}$
- (3) Assumes the issuance of a minimum of \$10 million of preferred stock. Adjusted figures reflect an historical yield on short-term borrowings of 2.44%.

6

### **Mid Penn Bancorp**

### **Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income**

### (In thousands, except per share data)

	Mo	istorical 12 onths Ended 2/31/2007	Minimum Proceeds Adjustments (unaudited)	Pro forma 12 Months Ended 12/31/2007
Net interest income	\$	16,105	210(1)	16,315
Provision for losses on loans		925		925
Net interest income after provision for losses on loans		15,180	210	15,390
Non-interest income		3,481		3,481
Non-interest expense		12,596		12,596
		6.065	210	( )75
Income before income tax		6,065	210	6,275
Income tax expense		1,394	71(2)	1,465
Net income	\$	4,671	139	4,810
Less: Preferred dividends		,	180(3)	180
Net income available to common stockholders	\$	4,671	(41)	4,630
Basic earnings per share available to common stockholders	\$	1.34	(0.02)	1.32
Diluted earnings per share available to common stockholders	\$	1.34	(0.02)	1.32
Weighted average shares outstanding:				
Basic		3,497,806		3,497,806
Diluted		3,497,806	5,112(4)	3,502,918
		Historical 12	Maximum	Pro forma 12
		Months Ended	Proceeds	Months Ended

	Mont	orical 12 hs Ended 31/2007	Maximum Proceeds Adjustments (unaudited)	Pro forma 12 Months Ended 12/31/2007
Net interest income	\$	16,105	466(5)	16,571
Provision for losses on loans		925		925
Net interest income after provision for losses on loans		15,180	466	15,646
Non-interest income		3,481		3,481
Non-interest expense		12,596		12,596
Income before income tax		6,065	466	6,531
Income tax expense		1,394	158(2)	1,552

Edgar Filing: MID PENN BANCORP INC - Form DEF 14A

Net income	\$	4,671	308	4,979
Less: Preferred dividends			400(3)	400
Net income available to common stockholders	\$	4,671	(92)	4,579
Basic earnings per share available to common stockholders	\$	1.34	(0.03)	1.31
Diluted earnings per share available to common stockholders	\$	1.34	(0.04)	1.30
Weighted average shares outstanding:				
Basic	3	,497,806		3,497,806
Diluted	3	,497,806	11,359(6)	3,509,165

<sup>(1)</sup> Assumes that the \$4.5 million in Capital Purchase Program proceeds are used to reduce short-term borrowings with an historical yield of 4.66%. Actual net interest income would be different as Mid Penn

- expects to utilize a portion of the proceeds to fund loan growth. However, such impact cannot be estimated at this time as the impact would vary based on the timing of when the loans are funded and the actual pricing of any such loans.
- (2) Additional income tax expense is attributable to additional net interest income as described in Note 1.
- (3) Consists of dividends on preferred stock at a 5% annual rate as well as accretion on discount on preferred stock upon issuance. The discount is determined based on the value that is allocated to the warrants upon issuance. The discount is accreted back to par value on a constant effective yield method (approximately 6%) over a five year term, which is the expected life of the preferred stock upon issuance. The estimated accretion is based on a number of assumptions which are subject to change. Those assumptions include the discount (market rate at issuance) rate on the preferred stock, and assumptions underlying the value of the warrants. The proceeds are allocated based on the relative fair value of the warrants as compared to the fair value of the preferred stock. The fair value of the warrants is determined under a Black-Scholes model. The model includes assumptions regarding Mid Penn s common stock price, dividend yield, stock price volatility, as well as assumptions regarding the risk-free interest rate. The lower the value of the warrants, the less negative impact on net income and earnings per share available to common shareholders. The fair value of the preferred stock is determined based on assumptions regarding the discount rate (market rate) on the preferred stock (currently estimated at 12%). The lower the discount rate, the less negative impact on net income and earnings per share available to common shareholders.
- (4) As described in the Section titled Description of Warrants Under U.S. Treasury s Capital Purchase Program, the U.S. Treasury would receive warrants to purchase a number of shares of our common stock having an aggregate market price equal to 15% of the proceeds on the date of issuance with a strike price equal to the trailing twenty day trading average leading up to the closing date. This pro forma assumes that the warrants would give the U.S. Treasury the option to purchase 32,640 shares of Mid Penn common stock. The pro forma adjustment shows the increase in diluted shares outstanding assuming that the warrants had been issued on January 1, 2007 at a strike price of \$20.68 (based on the trailing 20 day Mid Penn average share price as of November 17, 2008) and remained outstanding for the entire period presented. The treasury stock method was utilized to determine dilution of the warrants for the period presented.
- (5) Assumes that the \$10 million in Capital Purchase Program proceeds are used to reduce short-term borrowings with an historical yield of 4.66%. Actual net interest income would be different as Mid Penn expects to utilize a portion of the proceeds to fund loan growth. However, such impact cannot be estimated at this time as the impact would vary based on the timing of when the loans are funded and the actual pricing of any such loans.
- (6) As described in the Section titled Description of Warrants Under U.S. Treasury s Capital Purchase Program, the U.S. Treasury would receive warrants to purchase a number of shares of our common stock having an aggregate market price equal to 15% of the proceeds on the date of issuance with a strike price equal to the trailing twenty day trading average leading up to the closing date. This pro forma assumes that the warrants would give the U.S. Treasury the option to purchase 72,533 shares of Mid Penn common stock. The pro forma adjustment shows the increase in diluted shares outstanding assuming that the warrants had been issued on January 1, 2007 at a strike price of \$20.68 (based on the trailing 20 day Mid Penn average share price as of November 17, 2008) and remained outstanding for the entire period presented. The treasury stock method was utilized to determine dilution of the warrants for the period presented.

8

### **Mid Penn Bancorp**

### **Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income**

### (In thousands, except per share data)

	Mo	istorical 9 nths Ended 0/30/2008	Minimum Proceeds Adjustments (unaudited)	Pro forma 9 Months Ended 9/30/2008
Net interest income	\$	12,639	82(1)	12,721
Provision for losses on loans		530		530
Net interest income after provision for losses on loans		12,109	82	12,191
Non-interest income		2,800		2,800
Non-interest expense		10,448		10,448
Income before income tax		4,461	82	4,543
Income tax expense		1,106	28(2)	1,134
Net income	\$	3,355	54	3,409
Less: Preferred dividends			135(3)	135
Net income available to common stockholders	\$	3,355	(81)	3,274
Basic earnings per share available to common stockholders	\$	0.96	(0.02)	0.94
Diluted earnings per share available to common stockholders	\$	0.96	(0.02)	0.94
Weighted average shares outstanding:				
Basic		3,484,210		3,484,210
Diluted		3,484,210	5,279(4)	3,489,489

	Mon	torical 9 ths Ended 30/2008	Maximum Proceeds Adjustments (unaudited)	Pro forma 9 Months Ended 9/30/2008
Net interest income	\$	12,639	183(5)	12,822
Provision for losses on loans		530		530
Net interest income after provision for losses on loans		12,109	183	12,292
Non-interest income		2,800		2,800
Non-interest expense		10,448		10,448
Income before income tax		4,461	183	4,644
Income tax expense		1,106	62(2)	1,168

Edgar Filing: MID PENN BANCORP INC - Form DEF 14A

Net income	\$	3,355	121	3,476
Less: Preferred dividends			300(3)	300
Net income available to common stockholders	\$	3,355	(179)	3,176
Basic earnings per share available to common stockholders	\$	0.96	(0.05)	0.91
Diluted earnings per share available to common stockholders	\$	0.96	(0.05)	0.91
Weighted average shares outstanding:				
Basic	3	,484,210		3,484,210
Diluted	3	,484,210	11,731(6)	3,495,941

<sup>(1)</sup> Assumes that the \$4.5 million in Capital Purchase Program proceeds are used to reduce short-term borrowings with an historical yield of 2.44%. Actual net interest income would be different as Mid Penn

- expects to utilize a portion of the proceeds to fund loan growth. However, such impact cannot be estimated at this time as the impact would vary based on the timing of when the loans are funded and the actual pricing of any such loans.
- (2) Additional income tax expense is attributable to additional net interest income as described in Note 1.
- (3) Consists of dividends on preferred stock at a 5% annual rate as well as accretion on discount on preferred stock upon issuance. The discount is determined based on the value that is allocated to the warrants upon issuance. The discount is accreted back to par value on a constant effective yield method (approximately 6%) over a five year term, which is the expected life of the preferred stock upon issuance. The estimated accretion is based on a number of assumptions which are subject to change. Those assumptions include the discount (market rate at issuance) rate on the preferred stock, and assumptions underlying the value of the warrants. The proceeds are allocated based on the relative fair value of the warrants as compared to the fair value of the preferred stock. The fair value of the warrants is determined under a Black-Scholes model. The model includes assumptions regarding Mid Penn s common stock price, dividend yield, stock price volatility, as well as assumptions regarding the risk-free interest rate. The lower the value of the warrants, the less negative impact on net income and earnings per share available to common shareholders. The fair value of the preferred stock is determined based on assumptions regarding the discount rate (market rate) on the preferred stock (currently estimated at 12%). The lower the discount rate, the less negative impact on net income and earnings per share available to common shareholders.
- (4) As described in the Section titled Description of Warrants Under U.S. Treasury s Capital Purchase Program, the Treasury would receive warrants to purchase a number of shares of our common stock having an aggregate market price equal to 15% of the proceeds on the date of issuance with a strike price equal to the trailing twenty day trading average leading up to the closing date. This pro forma assumes that the warrants would give the Treasury the option to purchase 32,640 shares of Mid Penn common stock. The pro forma adjustment shows the increase in diluted shares outstanding assuming that the warrants had been issued on January 1, 2007 at a strike price of \$20.68 (based on the trailing 20 day Mid Penn average share price as of November 17, 2008) and remained outstanding for the entire period presented. The treasury stock method was utilized to determine dilution of the warrants for the period presented.
- (5) Assumes that the \$10 million in Capital Purchase Program proceeds are used to reduce short-term borrowings with an historical yield of 2.44%. Actual net interest income would be different as Mid Penn expects to utilize a portion of the proceeds to fund loan growth. However, such impact cannot be estimated at this time as the impact would vary based on the timing of when the loans are funded and the actual pricing of any such loans.
- (6) As described in the Section titled Description of Warrants Under U.S. Treasury s Capital Purchase Program, the U.S. Treasury would receive warrants to purchase a number of shares of our common stock having an aggregate market price equal to 15% of the proceeds on the date of issuance with a strike price equal to the trailing twenty day trading average leading up to the closing date. This pro forma assumes that the warrants would give the U.S. Treasury the option to purchase 72,533 shares of Mid Penn common stock. The pro forma adjustment shows the increase in diluted shares outstanding assuming that the warrants had been issued on January 1, 2007 at a strike price of \$20.68 (based on the trailing 20 day Mid Penn average share price as of November 17, 2008) and remained outstanding for the entire period presented. The treasury stock method was utilized to determine dilution of the warrants for the period presented.

#### Effect of Inability to Participate in the Capital Purchase Program

Should the U.S. Treasury deny our application, we do not anticipate that it will have a material adverse effect on our liquidity, capital resources and adequacy, or results of operations.

**Liquidity.** Liquidity is the ability to quickly raise cash at a reasonable cost. An adequate liquidity position permits Mid Penn to pay creditors, compensate for unforeseen deposit fluctuations, and fund unexpected loan demand. While management believes that Mid Penn currently has in place adequate resources to permit it to continue to meet its short-term and long-term obligations, funds raised under the Capital Purchase Program could be deployed for such purposes at a lower cost than traditional sources of equity.

10

Capital Resources. Mid Penn (on a consolidated basis) and its subsidiary, Mid Penn Bank, is subject to various regulatory capital requirements. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can subject Mid Penn and/or Mid Penn Bank to regulatory action that could have a direct material effect on the Mid Penn s financial statements. While management expects that Mid Penn and Mid Penn Bank will continue to maintain for the foreseeable future capital levels that exceed the regulatory standards to be deemed well-capitalized, the ability to raise additional capital at relatively low cost through the Capital Purchase Program is attractive for the purpose of maintaining Mid Penn s well capitalized status.

**Results of Operations.** Mid Penn s access to funds pursuant to the Capital Purchase Program would provide it additional protection against losses and could permit it to improve its profitability through increased lending.

### Description of the Preferred Stock Under the U.S. Treasury s Capital Purchase Program

If Mid Penn were to participate in the U.S. Treasury s Capital Purchase Program, the U.S. Treasury would purchase from Mid Penn perpetual non-voting preferred stock which would be senior to our common stock and would carry a liquidation preference of at least \$1,000 per share (the Senior Preferred Shares ). The Senior Preferred Shares would constitute Tier 1 capital for bank regulatory purposes.

Amount of Senior Preferred Shares. Eligible institutions generally can apply to the U.S. Treasury to have it purchase preferred stock in aggregate amounts between 1% and 3% of the institution s risk-weighted assets. In the case of Mid Penn, Mid Penn may apply for an investment by the U.S. Treasury between approximately \$4.5 million and \$13 million. We have applied for an investment by the U.S. Treasury of \$10 million. If shareholders approve and adopt the amendment proposal and Mid Penn submits the final documentation and fulfills any outstanding requirements specified by the conditions of the preliminary approval, if received, and the terms of the U.S. Treasury s Securities Purchase Agreement, Mid Penn would issue approximately 10,000 shares of non-voting preferred stock to the U.S. Treasury.

**Dividends.** The Senior Preferred Shares would pay cumulative compounding dividends at a rate of 5% per annum until the fifth anniversary of the date of the original investment and thereafter at a rate of 9% per annum. Dividends would be payable quarterly in arrears on the fifteenth day of February, May, August, and November of each year. Subject to certain exceptions, for as long as any Senior Preferred Shares are outstanding, we may not declare or pay dividends on junior preferred shares, preferred shares of equal rank with the Senior Preferred Shares, or common stock unless all accrued and unpaid dividends on all outstanding Senior Preferred Shares have been declared and paid in full. In the case of preferred shares of an equal rank, we may pay dividends on a *pro rata* basis with the Senior Preferred Shares. Also, we may not repurchase or redeem, subject to limited exceptions, any junior preferred shares, preferred shares of equal rank with the Senior Preferred or common stock, unless all accrued and unpaid dividends for all past dividend periods on the Senior Preferred are fully paid.

No Voting Rights. The Senior Preferred Shares would be non-voting shares, other than class voting rights on (i) any authorization or issuance of shares ranking senior to the Senior Preferred Shares; (ii) any amendment to the rights of the Senior Preferred Shares, or (iii) any merger, exchange, or similar transaction which would adversely affect the rights of the Senior Preferred Shares. If the dividends described above were not paid in full for six dividend periods, whether or not consecutive, the holders of Senior Preferred Shares would have the right to elect two directors. The right to elect directors would terminate when dividends have been paid in full for four consecutive dividend periods.

**Restriction on Redemption of Senior Preferred Shares.** Mid Penn must obtain the U.S. Treasury s consent to redeem the Senior Preferred Shares for a period of three years from the date of the investment, except where such redemption would be made from the proceeds from an offering of perpetual preferred or common stock which constitute Tier I capital and which results in aggregate gross proceeds to Mid Penn of not less than 25% of the issue price of the Senior Preferred Shares.

11

After the third anniversary of the date of the U.S. Treasury s investment, Mid Penn may redeem the Senior Preferred Shares, in whole or in part, at any time and from time to time, at its own option. All redemptions of the Senior Preferred Shares shall be at 100% of its issue price plus any accrued and unpaid dividends (regardless of whether any dividends are actually declared for that dividend period). All redemptions will be subject to the approval of the FDIC.

**Restriction on Dividends of Common Stock.** Prior to the earlier of (1) the third anniversary of the closing date of the purchase of the Senior Preferred Shares and (2) the date on which the Senior Preferred Shares have been redeemed in whole or the U.S. Treasury has transferred all of the Senior Preferred Shares to third parties, Mid Penn may not, without the consent of the U.S. Treasury, declare or pay any dividend or make any distribution on common stock other than:

- (A) Regular quarterly cash dividends of not more than the amount of the last quarterly cash dividend per share declared or, if lower, publicly announced an intention to declare, on the common stock prior to October 14, 2008, as adjusted for any stock split, stock dividend, reverse stock split, reclassification or similar transaction;
- (B) Dividends payable solely in shares of common stock; and

Shares, or common stock if prohibited as described above under Dividends .

(C) Dividends or distributions of rights or junior stock in connection with a stockholders rights plan. **Restriction on Stock Repurchases.** The U.S. Treasury s consent will be required for repurchases of Mid Penn stock (other than (1) repurchases of the Senior Preferred Shares and (2) repurchases of junior preferred shares or common stock in connection with any benefit plan in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice) until the third anniversary of the date of the U.S. Treasury s investment unless, prior to such third anniversary, the Senior Preferred Shares are redeemed in whole or the U.S. Treasury has transferred all of the Senior Preferred Shares to third parties. In addition, there may be no share repurchases of junior preferred shares, preferred shares of equal rank with the Senior Preferred

**Shelf Registration Requirement.** Under the terms of the U.S. Treasury s Securities Purchase Agreement, we must file a shelf registration statement with the U.S. Securities & Exchange Commission covering the Senior Preferred Shares as promptly as practicable after the date of the U.S. Treasury s investment and maintain the effectiveness of such registration statement.

**Listing of Senior Preferred Shares on NASDAQ.** Mid Penn must use reasonable best efforts to cause the Senior Preferred Shares to be listed on the national securities exchange on which our common stock is listed which is NASDAQ, or on another national securities exchange designated by the U.S. Treasury.

**Executive Compensation.** If Mid Penn participates in the U.S. Treasury s Capital Purchase Program, Mid Penn must adopt the standards for executive compensation and corporate governance contained in the Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 for the period during which the U.S. Treasury holds any Senior Preferred Shares. These standards would apply to our chief executive officer, chief financial officer, plus the next three most highly compensated executive officers and include:

- 1. Ensuring that incentive compensation for senior executives does not encourage unnecessary and excessive risk-taking;
- 2. Requiring the recapture or clawback of any bonus or incentive compensation paid to a senior executive based on statements of earnings, gains, or other criteria that are later proven to be materially inaccurate;
- 3. Prohibiting certain severance payments to a senior executive, generally referred to as golden parachute payments, above specified amounts; and

4. Agreeing not to deduct for tax purposes executive compensation in excess of \$500,000 for each senior executive.

12

### Amendments of Certain Employment Agreements; Waivers from Certain Senior Executive Officers

Implementation of the executive compensation provisions of the Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 may require an amendment of employment contracts Mid Penn currently has with its chief executive officer, chief financial officer, and its next three most highly compensated executive officers. Furthermore, the terms of the U.S. Treasury s Securities Purchase Agreement require that the chief executive officer, chief financial officer, and the next three most highly compensated executive officers must execute a waiver releasing the U.S. Treasury from any claims that they might have against the U.S. Treasury as a result of the issuance of any federal regulations that require the modification of the terms of their employment agreements with respect to compliance with the above requirements or any other requirement of the Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008.

### Description of the Warrants Under the U.S. Treasury s Capital Purchase Program

In addition to the issuance of the Senior Preferred Shares, Mid Penn also must grant warrants to the U.S. Treasury to purchase a number of shares of common stock having a market price equal to 15% of aggregate amount of the preferred stock investment (the Warrants). The initial exercise price for the Warrants and the market price for determining the number of shares of common stock subject to the Warrants will be determined by reference to the market price of the common stock on the date of the investment by the U.S. Treasury in the preferred stock (calculated on a 20-day trailing average closing price).

Term and Exercisability. The term of the Warrants is 10 years, and they are immediately exercisable, in whole or in part.

**Transferability.** The Warrants will not be subject to any contractual restrictions on transfer; provided that the U.S. Treasury may only transfer or exercise an aggregate of one half of the Warrants prior to the earlier of (1) the date on which Mid Penn has received aggregate gross proceeds of not less than 100% of the issue price of the Senior Preferred Shares from one or more offerings of perpetual preferred or common stock which constitute Tier I capital and (2) December 31, 2009.

**Shelf Registration Requirement.** A condition of the U.S. Treasury s Securities Purchase Agreement is that we must file a shelf registration statement with the U.S. Securities & Exchange Commission covering the Warrants and the common stock underlying the Warrants as promptly as practicable after the date of the U.S. Treasury s investment and maintain the effectiveness of such registration statement.

**Listing of Warrants on NASDAQ.** Mid Penn must use reasonable best efforts to cause the Warrants to be listed on the same national securities exchange on which our common stock is listed which is NASDAQ, or on another national securities exchange designated by the U.S. Treasury.

**Voting.** The U.S. Treasury will agree not to exercise voting power with respect to any shares of common stock of Mid Penn issued to it upon exercise of the Warrants.

**Reduction.** In the event that Mid Penn has received aggregate gross proceeds of not less than 100% of the issue price of the Senior Preferred Shares from one or more offerings of perpetual preferred or common stock which constitute Tier I capital and which results in aggregate gross proceeds to Mid Penn of not less than 25% of the issue price of the Senior Preferred Shares on or prior to December 31, 2009, the number of shares of common stock underlying the Warrants then held by the U.S. Treasury shall be reduced by a number of shares equal to the product of (i) the number of shares originally underlying the Warrants (taking into account all adjustments) and (ii) 0.5.

13

#### Potential Anti-Takeover Effect

Creating the authority to issue preferred stock could adversely affect the ability of third parties to take over or change the control of Mid Penn by, for example, permitting issuances that would dilute the stock ownership of a person seeking to effect a change in the composition of our board of directors or contemplating a tender offer or other transaction for the combination of Mid Penn with another company.

The ability of our board of directors to establish the rights of, and to cause Mid Penn to issue, substantial amounts of preferred stock without the need for shareholder approval, upon such terms and conditions, and having such rights, privileges and preferences, as our board of directors may determine from time to time in the exercise of its business judgment, may, among other things, be used to create voting impediments with respect to changes in control of Mid Penn or to dilute the stock ownership of holders of common stock seeking to obtain control of Mid Penn. The rights of the holders of common stock will be subject to, and may be adversely affected by, any preferred stock that may be issued in the future. The issuance of preferred stock, while providing access to the U.S. Treasury s Capital Purchase Program, may have the effect of discouraging, delaying or preventing a change in control of Mid Penn. Other than our intention to participate in the U.S. Treasury s Capital Purchase Program, we have no present plans or intention to issue any shares of preferred stock.

### **Proposed Amendment**

Therefore, in order to be eligible to participate in the U.S. Treasury s Capital Purchase Program, we propose that Article 5 of our Articles of Incorporation be deleted and replaced in its entirety with the following:

5. The aggregate number of shares of capital stock which the Corporation shall have authority to issue is 20,000,000 shares divided into two classes consisting of 10,000,000 shares of common stock with the par value of \$1.00 each ( Common Stock ) and 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock with the par value of \$1.00 each ( Preferred Stock ).

The following is a statement of certain of the designations, preferences, qualifications, privileges, limitations, restrictions, and special or relative rights with respect to the Preferred Stock and a statement of the authority vested in the Board of Directors to fix by resolution any designations, preferences, privileges, qualifications, limitations, restrictions, and special or relative rights of any series of Preferred Stock which are not fixed hereby:

- (i) Issuance in series. The shares of Preferred Stock may be issued from time to time in series. Each series shall be designated so to distinguish the shares thereof from the shares of all other series. All shares of any particular series shall be identical except, if entitled to cumulative dividends, as to the date or dates from which dividends thereon shall be cumulative. All shares of Preferred Stock of all series shall be of equal rank and shall be identical in all respects, but, except to the extent not otherwise limited in this Article 5, any series may differ from any other series with respect to any one of the designations, preferences, qualifications, privileges, limitations, restrictions, or special or relative rights described below. The Board of Directors is expressly vested with authority to establish and designate any one or more series of Preferred Stock by filing a certificate pursuant to Pennsylvania Business Corporation Law and to fix and determine by resolution any designations, preferences, qualifications, privileges, limitations, restrictions, or special or relative rights of additional series which are not fixed hereby, including the following:
  - (a) The number of shares to constitute the series (which number may at any time, or from time to time, be increased or decreased by the Board of Directors, notwithstanding that shares of the series may be outstanding at the time of such increase or decrease, unless the Board of Directors shall have otherwise provided in creating such series) and the distinctive designation thereof.
  - (b) The dividend rate, the dates for payment of dividends, whether dividends are cumulative, and, if so, the date or dates from which and the extent to which dividends are cumulative.

14

- (c) The amount or amounts payable upon voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution, or winding up of the Corporation.
- (d) The extent of the voting rights, if any, whether full or limited, of the holders of shares of the series in addition to the voting rights provided by law.
- (e) Whether the shares of a series are redeemable, and, if redeemable, the redemption price or prices, if any, and the terms and conditions on which shares may be redeemed. The per share redemption price shall not be less than the share s involuntary liquidation preference plus an amount equal to all dividends thereon accrued and unpaid whether or not earned or declared.
- (f) Whether the shares of the series are convertible into or exchangeable for shares of Common Stock of the Corporation or other securities, and, if so, the conversion price or prices or the rate or rates of conversion or exchange, any adjustments thereof, and any other terms and conditions of conversion or exchange.
- (g) Whether the shares of the series are entitled to the benefit of any retirement or sinking fund to be applied to the purchase or redemption of those shares, and, if so, the amount thereof and the terms and conditions relative to the operation thereof.
- (h) Such other preferences, qualifications, privileges, limitations, restrictions, or special or relative rights of any series not fixed hereby and as the Board of Directors may deem advisable and state in such resolutions; provided, however, that no such preferences, qualifications, privileges, limitations, restrictions, or special or relative rights may be in conflict with these Articles of Incorporation or with the resolution or resolutions adopted by the Board of Directors providing for the issue of any series of which there are shares then outstanding.
- (ii) Dividends. The holders of shares of each series of Preferred Stock are entitled to receive, when and as declared by the Board of Directors, dividends at the rate fixed hereby or by the Board of Directors. If dividends on a particular series are determined hereby or by the Board of Directors to be cumulative, no dividends shall be paid or set apart for payment or declared on the Common Stock or on any class or series of stock of the Corporation ranking as to dividends subordinate to such series until dividends for the current dividend period and, to the extent cumulative, for all past dividend periods on all outstanding shares of such series have been paid or declared and set apart for payment, in full. In case dividends for any dividend period are not paid in full on all shares of Preferred Stock ranking equally as to dividends, all such shares shall participate ratably in the payment of dividends for such period in proportion to the full amounts of dividends to which they are respectively entitled regardless of whether or not the rates of dividends to which the particular series of Preferred Stock are the same.
- (iii) Liquidation of the Corporation. In the event of voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution, or winding up of the Corporation, the holders of shares of each series of Preferred Stock are entitled to receive from the assets of the Corporation (whether capital or surplus), prior to any payment to the holders of Common Stock or of any class or series of stock of the Corporation ranking as to assets subordinate to such series, the amount fixed hereby or by the Board of Directors for such series, plus, in case dividends on such series is cumulative, an amount equal to the accrued and unpaid dividends thereon computed to the date on which payment thereof is made available, whether or not earned or declared. After such payment to the holders of shares of such series, any remaining balance shall be paid to the holders of Common Stock or of any class or series of stock of the Corporation ranking as to assets subordinate to such series, as they maybe entitled. If, upon liquidation, dissolution, or winding up of the Corporation, its assets are not sufficient to pay in full the amounts so payable to the holders of shares of all series of Preferred Stock ranking equally as to assets, all such shares shall participate ratably in the distribution of assets in proportion to the full amounts to which they are respectively entitled whether or not the rates of dividends to which the particular series of Preferred Stock are the same. Neither a merger nor a consolidation of the Corporation into or with any other corporation nor a sale, transfer or lease of all or part of the assets of the Corporation is considered a liquidation, dissolution, or winding up of the Corporation within the meaning of this paragraph.

- (iv) Voting rights. Except as otherwise provided in the certificate filed pursuant to law with respect to any series of Preferred Stock or as otherwise provided by law, the Preferred Stock shall not have the right to vote for the election of directors or for any other purpose. In all instances in which voting rights are granted to Preferred Stock as a single class, such Preferred Stock or series shall vote with Common Stock as a single class except with respect to any vote for the approval of any merger, consolidation, liquidation, dissolution, or winding up of the Corporation and except as provided in the certificate filed pursuant to law with respect to any series of Preferred Stock or as otherwise provided by law.
- (v) Redemption and acquisition.
  - (a) In the event that Preferred Stock of any series is redeemable as provided in paragraph i(e) of this Article 5, the Corporation, at the option of the Board of Directors, may redeem at any time or times, from time to time, all or any part of any one or more series of Preferred Stock outstanding by paying the then applicable redemption price fixed by the Board of Directors for each share plus an amount equal to accrued and unpaid dividends to the date fixed for redemption, upon such notice and terms as may be specifically provided in the certificate filed pursuant to law with respect to such series of Preferred Stock.
  - (b) No holder of Preferred Stock is entitled (1) to subscribe for or purchase any part of any new or additional issue of stock of any class or series whatsoever, (2) any rights or options to purchase stock of any class or series whatsoever, (3) or any securities convertible into, exchangeable for, or carrying rights or options to purchase stock of any class or series whatsoever, whether now or hereafter authorized, and whether issued for cash or other consideration.
  - (c) Except as otherwise provided by the Board of Directors, Preferred Stock redeemed or acquired by the Corporation shall not be cancelled or retired except by action of the Board of Directors and will have the status of authorized and unissued Preferred Stock which may be reissued by the Board of Directors as shares of the same or any other series until cancelled and retired by action of the Board of Directors.

### Vote Required and Board of Director s Recommendation

The affirmative vote of a majority of all votes cast, in person or by proxy, is required for approval of the proposal to approve and adopt an amendment to Mid Penn s Articles of Incorporation. Under Pennsylvania law, abstentions and broker non-votes will have no effect on determining whether the proposal has received the requisite number of affirmative votes.

Our board of directors unanimously recommends a vote FOR the approval and

adoption of the proposed amendment to the Articles of Incorporation.

16

### **Beneficial Share Ownership**

### **Principal Shareholders**

The following table shows, to the best of our knowledge, those persons or entities, who owned of record or beneficially, on November 10, 2008, more than 5% of the outstanding shares of Mid Penn s common stock.

Beneficial ownership of Mid Penn s common stock was determined by referring to Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 13d-3, which provides that a person should be credited with the ownership of any stock held, directly or indirectly, through any contract, arrangement, understanding, relationship, or otherwise has or shares:

- 1. Voting power, which includes the power to vote or to direct the voting of the stock; or
- 2. Investment power, which includes the power to dispose or direct the disposition of the stock; or
- 3. The right to acquire beneficial ownership within 60 days after November 10, 2008.

#### Name and Residential Address of

Title of Class of Security	Beneficial Owner	Amount and Nature of Beneficial Ownership	Percent of Class
Common Stock	CEDE & Co.(1)	1,128,036	32.42%
	The Depository Trust Company		
	PO Box 20		
	Bowling Green Station		
	New York, New York 10274		

(1) CEDE & Co. holds shares of various brokerage firms, banks, or other nominees on behalf of individual shareholders, commonly referred to shares held in street name.

### Share Ownership by the Directors and Officers

The following table shows, as of November 10, 2008, the amount and percentage of Mid Penn s common stock beneficially owned by each director, each named executive officer, and all directors and executive officers of the corporation as a group.

Beneficial ownership of shares of Mid Penn s common stock is determined in accordance with Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 13d-3, which provides that a person should be credited with the ownership of any stock held, directly or indirectly, through any contract, arrangement, understanding, relationship, or otherwise has or shares:

- 1. Voting power, which includes the power to vote or to direct the voting of the stock; or
- 2. Investment power, which includes the power to dispose or direct the disposition of the stock; or

3. The right to acquire beneficial ownership within 60 days after November 10, 2008.

17

Unless otherwise indicated in a footnote appearing below the table, all shares reported in the table below are owned directly by the reporting person. The number of shares owned by the directors and executive officers is rounded to the nearest whole share.

Name of Beneficial Owner	Amount and Nature of Beneficial Ownership	Percent of Class
Jere M. Coxon	•	1.58%
	54,896(1)	
Alan W. Dakey	14,252(2)	.41%
Matthew G. DeSoto	1,691(3)	.05%
A. James Durica	2,645(4)	.08%
Robert C. Grubic	16,345	.47%
Gregory M. Kerwin	23,500(5)	.68%
Theodore W. Mowery	2,633	.08%
Donald E. Sauve	3,147(6)	.09%
Edwin D. Schlegel	80,428(7)	2.31%
William A. Specht, III	33,711(8)	.97%
Kevin W. Laudenslager	1,692	.05%
Cindy L. Wetzel	2,540(9)	.07%
All Officers and Directors as a Group (12 persons)	237,480	6.82%

- (1) Includes 1,789 shares held by Mr. Coxon s spouse.
- (2) Includes 13,369 shares held jointly by Mr. Dakey and his spouse.
- (3) Includes 39 shares held by Mr. DeSoto as a 50% owner in a partnership account.
- (4) Includes 551 shares held jointly by Mr. Durica and his spouse and 2,094 shares held by Mr. Durica in an IRA.
- (5) Shares held jointly by Mr. Kerwin and his spouse.
- (6) Shares held jointly by Mr. Sauve and his spouse.
- (7) Shares held jointly by Mr. Schlegel and his spouse.
- (8) Includes 2,501 shares held jointly by Mr. Specht and his spouse. Mr. Specht is trustee of a family trust of which 15,783 shares are held for the benefit of Janet E. Specht and 15,427 shares are held for the benefit of William A. Specht, Jr.
- (9) Shares held jointly by Mrs. Wetzel and her spouse.

### Proposal No. 2: Adjournment or Postponement of Special Meeting

In the event that Mid Penn does not have sufficient votes for a quorum or to approve and adopt the proposal to amend its Articles of Incorporation at its special meeting of shareholders, it intends to adjourn or postpone the special meeting to permit further solicitation of proxies. Mid Penn can only use proxies it receives at the time of the special meeting to vote for adjournment or postponement, if necessary, by submitting the question of adjournment or postponement to shareholders as a separate matter for consideration.

The board of directors recommends shareholders mark their proxy in favor of the adjournment or postponement proposal so that their proxy may be used to vote for adjournment or postponement, if necessary. If shareholders properly execute their proxy, Mid Penn will consider that those shareholders voted in favor of the adjournment or postponement proposal unless their proxy indicates otherwise. If Mid Penn adjourns or postpones its special meeting, it will not give notice of the time and place of the adjourned or postponed meeting other than by an announcement of such time and place at the special meeting.

The adjournment or postponement proposal requires that holders of more of Mid Penn s shares vote in favor of the adjournment or postponement proposal than vote against it. Accordingly, abstentions and broker non-votes will have no effect on the outcome of this proposal. No proxy that is specifically marked AGAINST the

proposal to amend the Articles of Incorporation will be voted in favor of the adjournment or postponement proposal, unless it is specifically marked FOR the discretionary authority to adjourn or postpone the special meeting to a later date.

The board of directors believes that if the number of shares of its common stock present or represented at the special meeting by proxy that vote in favor of the proposal to amend the Articles of Incorporation is insufficient for shareholder approval, it is in the best interests of Mid Penn to enable the board of directors, for a limited period of time, to continue to seek to obtain a sufficient number of additional votes to approve and adopt the amendment proposal.

### Our board of directors unanimously recommends a vote FOR the proposal to adjourn or

postpone the special meeting.

#### Other Business

We know of no other business which will be presented for the consideration of shareholders at the special meeting, but should any other matters be brought before the special meeting, we intend that the persons named in the accompanying proxy will vote at the discretion of Mid Penn s board of directors.

### **Shareholder Proposals for 2009 Annual Meeting**

In order for a shareholder proposal to be considered for inclusion in Mid Penn s proxy statement for next year s annual meeting, the written proposal must be received by the corporation no later than November 27, 2008. All proposals must comply with the Securities and Exchange Commission regulations regarding the inclusion of shareholder proposals in company-sponsored proxy materials. If a shareholder proposal is submitted to the corporation after November 27, 2008, it is considered untimely; and, although the proposal may be considered at the annual meeting, the corporation is not obligated to include it in the 2009 proxy statement. Similarly, in compliance with the corporation s Bylaws, shareholders wishing to nominate a candidate for election to the board of directors must notify the Mid Penn s Secretary in writing no later than 60 days in advance of the meeting. Shareholders must deliver any proposals or nominations in writing to the Secretary of Mid Penn Bancorp, Inc. at its principal executive office, 349 Union Street, Millersburg, Pennsylvania 17061.

### **Incorporation of Financial Information**

The rules of the SEC permit us to incorporate by reference certain information we file with the SEC into this proxy statement. This means that we can disclose important information to shareholders by referring the shareholders to another document. Any information incorporated by reference into this proxy statement is considered to be part of this proxy statement from the date we file that information with the SEC. Any reports filed by us with the SEC after the date of this proxy statement will automatically update and, where applicable, supersede any information contained in this proxy statement or incorporated by reference into this proxy statement.

This proxy statement incorporates by reference the following items of Part II of the Mid Penn s annual report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007:

Item 7. Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations;

Item 7A. Quantitative Disclosures About Market Risk;

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data; and

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

19

The proxy statement also incorporates by reference the following items of Part I of Mid Penn s quarterly reports on Form 10-Q file with the SEC for the periods ended March 31, 2008, June 30, 2008, and September 30, 2008.

Item 1. Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements;

Item 2. Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations; and

#### Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure About Market Risk

All documents filed by Mid Penn with the SEC subsequent to the date hereof and prior to the date of the special meeting pursuant to Section 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, are incorporated herein by reference. Any statement contained in a document to the extent that a statement contained in another subsequently filed document which also is or is deemed to be incorporated by reference herein modifies or supersedes such statement.

On written request, Mid Penn will provide without charge to each record or beneficial holder of the Mid Penn s common stock, a copy of Mid Penn s Form 10-K and Form 10-Q, as filed with the SEC. Requests should be addressed to Cindy L. Wetzel, Mid Penn Bancorp, Inc., 349 Union Street, Millersburg, Pennsylvania 17061.

All documents filed with the SEC by Mid Penn pursuant to sections 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act subsequent to the date of this proxy statement and prior to the date of the special meeting are incorporated herein by reference. Any statement contained in a document incorporated or deemed to be incorporated by reference herein shall be deemed to be modified or superseded for purposes of this proxy statement to the extent that a statement contained in another subsequently filed document which also is or is deemed to be incorporated by reference herein modifies or supersedes such statement.

### **Accountants Attendance at the Annual Meeting**

A representative of Parente Randolph, LLC, the independent accountants of Mid Penn for the year ending December 31, 2008, is not expected to be present at the special meeting.

### **Forward-Looking Statements**

This proxy statement contains certain forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 which are intended to be covered by the safe harbors created thereby. Typically, the use of the words believe, anticipate, plan, expect, seek, estimate, and similar expressions identify forward-looking statements. Unless a statement describes a historical event, it should be considered a forward-looking statement. Although we believe that the assumptions underlying the forward-looking statements contained herein are reasonable, any of the assumptions could be inaccurate, and therefore, the forward-looking statements included in this proxy statement may prove to be inaccurate. Our actual results may differ materially from the results anticipated in the forward-looking statements. Any forward-looking statements contained in this proxy statement involve risks and uncertainties, including but not limited to risks identified in Mid Penn s other filings with the SEC. In light of the significant uncertainties inherent in the forward-looking statements included herein, the inclusion of such information should not be regarded as a representation by Mid Penn or any other person that the objectives and plans of Mid Penn will be achieved. We undertake no obligation to publicly release the results of any revisions to the forward-looking statements that may be made to reflect events or circumstances after the date hereof or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.

20

#### REVOCABLE PROXY

### MID PENN BANCORP, INC.

### PROXY FOR SPECIAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

### SOLICITED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The undersigned hereby appoints Roberta A. Hoffman, Randall L. Klinger, and Eric S. Williams, and each of them, as attorney and proxy of the undersigned, with the full power of substitution, to represent the undersigned and to vote all of the shares of stock in Mid Penn Bancorp, Inc. which the undersigned is entitled to vote at the Special Meeting of Shareholders to be held at Mid Penn Bank located at 349 Union Street, Millersburg, Pennsylvania 17061, on December 10, 2008 at 10:00 a.m. local time, and any adjournments or postponements thereof (1) as hereinafter specified upon the proposals listed below and as more particularly described in the company s proxy statement, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, and (2) in their discretion upon such other matters as may properly come before the meeting and any adjournment or postponement thereof.

#### THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS A VOTE FOR THE PROPOSALS LISTED.

1.	To approve and adopt an amendment to Mid Penn s Articles of Incorporation authorizing the issuance of up to 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock.			
	FOR	AGAINST	WITHHOLD	
2.	To adjourn or postpone the special meeting of shareholders, if more time is needed, to allow Mid Penn time to solicit additional vote in favor of the proposal to amend its Articles of Incorporation;			
Discretion	FOR nary authority is conferred	AGAINST by this proxy with respect to certain matters,	WITHHOLD as described in the accompanying proxy statement.	
Please sign exactly as your name appears below. When shares are held by joint tenants, both should sign.				
When signing as attorney, executor, administrator, trustee, or guardian, please give full title. If signer is a corporation, please sign the full corporation name by the president or other authorized officer. If signer is a partnership, please sign in the partnership name by an authorized person.				
Please be sure to sign and date this proxy in the box below.				
			Date	
Sharehold			Co-holder	
Please mark, sign, date, and return this proxy card promptly using the enclosed envelope.				